
 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 1/4/2023 - Page 1 

 

 

 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem ,Place 1 

Anne Weir, Place 2 

Maria Amezcua, Place 3 

Sonia Wallace, Place 4 

Aaron Moreno, Place 5 

Deja Hill, Place 6 

City Council Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, January 04, 2023 at 7:00 PM 

Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three 

(3) minutes per person. Comments on specific agenda items must be made when the item comes before the Council. 

To address the City Council, please complete the white card and present it to the City Secretary prior to the meeting. 

No Action May be Taken by the City Council During Public Comments. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance granting Texas Community Propane Inc. 

the right, privilege and franchise to use streets, alleys and thoroughfares to operate and 

maintain a propane distribution system in the City of Manor. 
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 

enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a 

Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of 

the December 21, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting. 
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

  

1



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 1/4/2023 - Page 2 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

3. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance granting 

Texas Community Propane Inc. the right, privilege and franchise to use streets, alleys 

and thoroughfares to operate and maintain a propane distribution system in the City 

of Manor. 
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager 

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointments of the Planning and 

Zoning Commission Members for Place No. 1; Place No. 3; Place No. 5, and Place No. 

7. 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Assistant Development Services Director 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council will now Convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 

Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in: 

-  Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 

Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Manor Apartments; 

  

-  Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Manor Springs; 

-   Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 

Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the EPCOR Wholesale Water 

Agreement; and 

 

-  Section 551.071 and Section 551.087, Texas Government Code to deliberate on the acquisition 

of real property 

OPEN SESSION 

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code and take action, if any, on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations 

regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

§551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic 

Development Negotiations). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

2



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 1/4/2023 - Page 3 

 

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or employee of 

the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the council or any board or 

commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct or indirect, in the issue, subject or 

matter that is different from that of the public at large. An interest arising from job duties, compensation or benefits payable 

by the city shall not constitute a personal financial interest.” 

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member and no City 

officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in which the City Council 

member or City officer has a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on the matter will have a special 

economic effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from the effect on the general public. An affidavit 

disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the City Secretary before the matter is discussed. 

 

POSTING CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the City Hall of 

the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted 

on the following date and time: Friday, December 30, 2022, by 5:00 PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 

hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

  

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 

City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council 

Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 

services must be made 72 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.215.8285 or e-mail 

lalmaraz@manortx.gov   

3

mailto:lalmaraz@manortx.gov


  AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: January 4, 2023 
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance granting Texas Community Propane Inc. the right, privilege and franchise 
to use streets, alleys and thoroughfares to operate and maintain a propane distribution system in the City of 
Manor. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:   

On April 17, 2002, the City Council approved Ordinance 200 with Texas Community Propane with a term of 20 
years.  It is common for public utilities in the State of Texas to secure long term agreements and allow them time 
to plan and fund their infrastructure upgrades throughout the community and region.  The City of Manor has been 
fortunate to from partnerships with other public utilities by investing and providing quality services to our 
residents and businesses and extending this agreement would be a consistent business practice for our 
organization. 

Per City Charter Section 11.02 – Franchises - The council shall have the power and authority to grant franchises 
for the use and occupancy of streets, avenues, alleys and any and all public property belonging to or under the 
control of the city. Except as specifically authorized and provided otherwise by state law, no individual, 
organization, entity, political subdivision, corporation, public utility or any provider of public service shall provide 
any service within the city requiring the use or occupancy of any street, public right-of-way or property without 
first being granted a franchise or permit to use such city facilities. The franchise ordinance or permit shall fully 
describe the terms of the agreement, and regardless of the title given, shall be subject to the terms of this article. 
The terms of such agreements shall be explicit so as to protect the interests of the citizens and shall include, but 
not be limited to, the terms prescribed in this charter. No franchise ordinance or permit shall be passed except 
on two readings, held after a public hearing for which ten days notice is given in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city and posted on the city's website, unless applicable state or federal law requires the 
issuance of the franchise or permit within a specific time period, in which case the franchise ordinance or permit 
will be approved in accordance with the procedures established by ordinance.  
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Ordinance  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council conduct the public hearing.  
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 4

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS GRANTING TO 
TEXAS COMMUNITY PROPANE, INC. THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AND 
FRANCHISE TO USE STREETS, ALLEYS, AND THOUROUGHFARES 
TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A PROPANE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
IN THE CITY OF MANOR, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING 
REGULATIONS FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE SYSTEM; MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 

WHEREAS, Texas Community Propane, Ltd., a Texas domestic limited partnership 
registered to do business in the State of Texas (the “Company”) desires to continue operating 
a propane gas utility system within the City of Manor, Texas (the “City”); and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to offer the Company a franchise renewal 
on such terms and conditions as will provide the City with control and options necessary to 
provide for the public good; and 

 
WHEREAS, after providing at least ten (10) days’ notice, a public hearing was held on this 
franchise renewal; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 121 of the Texas Utilities Code authorizes the City to adopt ordinances 
that establish conditions for mapping, inventorying, locating, or relocating pipelines over, 
under, along, or across a public street or alley or private residential area in the boundaries of 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City strives to promote orderly and safe development within the territorial 
limits of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas (the “City Council”) finds that this 
Ordinance authorizing the City to renew a franchise with Company under certain conditions is 
in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1.  Findings of Fact. That all of the above recitals and findings of fact are found 
to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
  

5

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2 
 

2 
 

SECTION 2. Grant of Franchise. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Franchise 
Ordinance, the right, privilege and franchise is hereby granted to the Company, and to its 
successors, lessees, and assigns, as are authorized and approved by ordinance, to have, own, 
acquire, install, construct, reconstruct, operate, maintain, use, and extend a system of mains, 
pipelines, conduits, valves, feeders, regulator stations, laterals, service lines, measuring 
devices, and all other necessary plants, attachments, land, structures facilities and 
appurtenances (hereinafter the “System”) for the purpose of selling, storing, supplying, 
conveying, transmitting, distributing, and/or transporting propane gas (“Gas”), including the 
equivalent substitutes, for all other lawful purposes in, through, upon, under, and along the 
present and future streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, sidewalks, parks, easements, highways, 
and any other public places including any streams, water courses or water ways within the 
City limits of the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas (the “City”), and including any 
territory that the City may hereafter annex, acquire or purchase; and to distribute, sell, store, 
supply, transport, carry and/or convey Gas through the System in the City to other cities, towns, 
communities and areas outside the City and to inhabitants thereof, for the full term of this 
Franchise Ordinance. This Franchise Ordinance shall in no way affect or impair the present 
or future rights, obligations, or remedies of the City or Company under the Gas Utility 
Regulatory Act, Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 103, as amended. 

 
SECTION 3. Placement of Pipes and Facilities. (a) The mainlines and service pipes of the 
Company shall be laid in alleys, streets, and avenues, and, public utility easements that allow 
the placement of gas mains, and when in streets and avenues, shall be laid parallel with the curb 
line thereof, or in such locations as shall be most practical, provided, however, that in no case 
shall any main be laid less than 24 inches below the established street grade, without permission 
of the City Engineer. The Company is hereby authorized, licensed, and empowered to do any 
and all things necessary and proper to be done and performed in executing the powers and 
utilizing the privileges granted by this Franchise Ordinance, provided the same do not conflict 
with existing infrastructure in the public ways. However, the Company agrees to give the City 
reasonable notice of the dates, location, and nature of work to be performed on the Company’s 
facilities or gas system within the public ways or rights of way. Storage tanks having a capacity 
of 12,900 gallons or greater shall be buried underground. Storage tanks having a capacity of 
less than 12,900 gallons will be either above ground or buried on a case-by-case basis as 
determined by the Company and approved by the City Engineer. Temporary storage tanks of 
any size may remain on site above ground with approval from the City Engineer, provided such 
tanks do not remain at the site longer than fifteen (15) months. Company shall not construct, 
install or erect any facilities or equipment above ground on any such public property without 
specific written permission of the City Engineer, or other proper public authority. 

 
(b) Except in the case of an emergency, when the Company shall desire to lay any 

mains hereunder, and before commencing its construction work, it shall submit to the City 
Engineer, or other proper authority, a pre-construction map or plan showing the streets, 
avenues, alleys, and other public places and the locations thereon wherein it proposes to 

6

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 3 
 

3 
 

construct such pipes and mains. The City Engineer, or other proper authority, shall respond 
in writing to Company within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed twenty (20) 
business days, after Company’s submission either approving or rejecting the plan, and 
if a rejection, listing the reasons for such rejection. Approval by the City Engineer, or other 
proper authority, shall constitute a permit to the Company for the opening of the streets, 
avenues, alleys, and other public places shown on the map or plan, and for the construction 
or laying of the mains and pipes by the Company (the “Permit”) as shown on the plan. 
If the City Engineer, or other proper authority, does not respond within twenty (20) 
business days, the Permit shall be deemed denied. In the event that the Permit is denied, the 
City Engineer, or other proper authority, shall advise Company of the reasons for the denial 
and all necessary steps to secure approval of the Permit by resubmittal. Company shall have 
the right to immediately appeal the issuance of the Permit to the City Manager, and if 
not approved within ten (10) calendar days by the City Manager, the Company may appeal 
to the City Council and be heard at a public meeting held in compliance with applicable law. 
If the Council fails to act on the appeal within twenty-one (21) days, the appeal will be 
deemed to be denied unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Company and the City. Appeal 
of any decision made by the City Council shall be made to the District Court of Travis County, 
Texas. It shall not be necessary for Company to secure a permit for the laying of service 
pipes from the mainline pipes of the Company to its customers. This Section 2(b) shall also 
apply to all other facilities and equipment of the Company to be constructed or installed on 
public property within the City. Upon completion of the construction the Company shall file 
with the City Engineer, or other proper authority, the “as built” plans. 

 
(c) In the refilling of all openings made by the Company, it shall restore the City 

public rights-of- way to a condition reasonably approximate to the original condition, and 
when the Company shall open any ground in the City rights-of-way, the Company shall 
open no more space nor keep the space open any longer than is reasonably necessary to 
properly execute the work for which such space shall have been opened. The Company shall 
at all times display and keep the necessary danger signals and barricades around all excavations 
and obstructions and shall keep sufficient space in good condition for the travel of 
automobiles, trucks, and other motor vehicles, on at least one side of all excavations and 
obstructions. The Company shall comply with all applicable City ordinances, rules, and 
regulations for the repair of cuts and excavations, as are applicable to all other franchisees 
of the City, however, in the event that any term or condition of this franchise conflicts 
with the City’s comprehensive ROW ordinance, this franchise shall prevail. 

 
(d) The Company shall not install any pipe, line or facility within any park or 

recreational land of the City without specific written permission. The Company may petition 
the Council for permission to cross park lands; provided that the grant of any such permission 
shall be in the sole discretion of the Council. 

 

7

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 4 
 

4 
 

(e) When the Company is required by City to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, 
and other facilities to accommodate construction of streets and alleys by City, and Company is 
eligible under federal, state, county, local or other programs for reimbursement of costs and 
expenses incurred by Company as a result of such removal or relocation, and such 
reimbursement is required to be handled through the City, Company shall provide costs and 
expenses to the City to be included in any application by City for reimbursement. Company 
will work with the City to provide appropriate cost and expense documentation to the City 
prior to the filing of the application. When Company is required to remove or relocate its mains, 
laterals or other facilities to accommodate construction of streets or alleys by City without 
reimbursement from City, Company shall have the right to seek a surcharge to recover 
relocation costs pursuant to Section 104.112 et al, of the Texas Utilities Code or any other 
applicable law or regulations. Relocation of any Company mains, pipes or facilities for private 
purposes will be subject to reimbursement. 

 
SECTION 4. Location of Pipes and Facilities; Fleet and Customer Information. 
Company shall cooperate and provide at no cost to the City copies of maps, plans and other 
information depicting and detailing the location of Company’s facilities, pipes, transmission 
lines and related appurtenances within city limits of the City, including full details related to 
anything located in public rights-of- way or within City utility easements. Company shall 
provide City with information related to their vehicle fleet and equipment that will or may be 
operated within the City, specifically detailing weight capacity and/or hazardous 
transport designations.  

 
SECTION 5. Emergency Plan, Coordination. Company shall cooperate and coordinate 
the formation of an emergency plan with the City’s fire department and emergency 
responders in the event of a gas line break, leak or other such failure of the Company’s system 
and related infrastructure. Company shall inform City personnel of actions that will be taken 
by Company under varying emergency situations, including the detection and smell of gas. 
Company shall provide details of tank locations and related infrastructure of Company, the 
locations of emergency shut off valves and other information deemed pertinent by the City’s 
emergency responders. 

 
SECTION 6. Reservations of Rights. All work, activity and undertakings by the 
Company shall be subject to the terms and provisions of this Franchise and the continuing 
exercise by the City of its governmental and police powers; and provided further that nothing 
herein shall be construed to require or authorize Company to exceed any rights granted 
herein or by the Texas Railroad Commission. No fee or other charges of any kind shall be 
imposed upon the Company, or upon any consumer of gas for the breaking or opening of 
any streets or other public rights-of- way or for the laying, construction, or maintenance of 
mainline s, service pipes or other facilities therein except as provided for hereunder. Nothing 
in this Franchise Ordinance shall be construed in such manner as to in any way abridge 

8

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 5 
 

5 
 

the right of the City to pass the necessary police ordinances for the protection of the citizens 
of the City and their property, and the property of the Company, as long as such ordinances 
are not inconsistent with this Franchise Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 7. Damage to Facilities. Subject to an exception for emergencies, the Company 
shall do no permanent injury to any street, avenue, alley, lane, bridge, stream, watercourse, 
park or public place. Any such injury by the Company to any street, avenue, alley, lane, bridge, 
stream, watercourse, park or public place shall be repaired at the cost and expense of the 
Company. Company and City shall exercise reasonable efforts to ensure that any future 
installations of utilities in City rights-of-way by Company, City or other utility providers 
authorized by City do not interfere unnecessarily with any facilities of Company, City or other 
utility providers. In the event of a conflict between the location of the facilities of Company 
and the location of the facilities of City or other utility franchises within the Public Right-of-
Way that cannot otherwise be resolved, City or an authorized agent of City shall resolve the 
conflict and determine the location of the respective facilities.  

 
SECTION 8. Rules and Rates. Company, and its successors and assigns, shall have the 
right to adopt and enforce Rules of Service for service hereunder not inconsistent with law 
or this Franchise Ordinance. Company shall supply propane gas and provide regulated 
services at the rates and under the terms and conditions specified by such rules, its tariffs filed 
with the City and as provided herein. Upon demand, Company shall provide to the City a list 
of all applicable rules, regulations, including state and federal statutes, applicable to 
Company’s business operations conducted within the City. 

 
SECTION 9. Franchise Term. This Franchise Ordinance shall continue and remain 
in full force and effect for a period of twenty (20) years from and after the date it becomes 
effective. 

 
SECTION 10. Option to Purchase. (a) In the event Company shall desire renewal of this 
Franchise Ordinance, the Company shall notify the City within the last twelve (12) months 
of the term of this Franchise Ordinance. If the City refuses to renew this Franchise 
Ordinance with the Company, the City, at the City’s option, shall have the right to 
purchase for cash the distribution plant assets of the Company located within the City, 
and those located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City that are operated as 
one business unit with the assets located within the City, for the market value of such assets, 
appraised as an ongoing business without regard to the lack of a franchise ordinance (the 
“Appraised Value”). 

 
(b) In order to exercise this option to purchase, the City must provide written notice 

the Company of the City’s intention to purchase (the “Notice”), or such option is waived. If 
given, the Notice by City to the Company shall be provided on the later of the following 
times: (i) six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Franchise Ordinance; (ii) six (6) 

9

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 6 
 

6 
 

months after the receipt from the Company of the Company’s notice that it desires to renew 
this Franchise; or (iii) six (6) months after receiving written notice from the Company that the 
Franchise Ordinance has expired. The determination of the Appraised Value shall be 
accomplished as set forth below. The Company and the City shall meet within thirty (30) 
days of the Notice and attempt to reach agreement upon the Appraised Value. In the event 
the Company and the City cannot reach agreement upon the Appraised Value within such thirty 
(30) day period, Company and the City shall each appoint a qualified business appraiser, 
with a reasonable level of experience in business valuations of utility assets. The appraisers 
so appointed shall each render an opinion as to the Appraised Value within ninety (90) days 
of the Notice. If the two opinions differ by 10%, or less, of the higher value, the average of the 
values shall be the Appraised Value. If the two opinions differ by more than 10% of the 
higher value, the appointed appraisers shall select a mutually agreeable independent business 
appraiser (with reasonable business valuation experience), who shall provide an opinion as to 
the Appraised Value to both parties within one hundred fifty (150) days of the Notice. The 
value assigned by the independent appraiser and the closest value assigned by either of the 
appoint ed appraisers shall be averaged to produce the Appraised Value. 

 
(c) Both parties shall use good faith efforts to reach agreement on the terms and 

conditions of the purchase and to close the purchase transaction prior to the expiration 
of the term of the franchise ordinance. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses 
associated with the purchase transaction and shall share equally all costs of the independent 
business appraiser. 

 
(d) In the event the City exercises the option to purchase Company’s system, such 

purchase must be closed within six (6) months following the final determination of the 
Appraised Value pursuant to Subsection 7(b) above. In such event, the franchise term shall 
be deemed extended for such time as required to finalize the purchase of the distribution 
assets of Company, but no longer than six (6) months in any event. ln the event the City 
decides not to purchase Company’s system, or the City is financially unable to close the 
purchase of the Company’s system within the six (6) months, the City’s purchase right 
shall be deemed waived, and the City shall reimburse Company for all of the Company’s 
reasonably necessary costs and expenses expended in preparing for the purchase transaction. 

 
(e) In the event the City does not exercise the option to purchase and this Franchise 

Ordinance is not renewed or extended, at the expiration of the franchise term the Company 
may, at its sole option either: (1) abandon its facilities in place in accordance with the 
Regulations with the Railroad Commission of Texas, in which case the City shall support 
Company’s abandonment filing at the Railroad Commission; or (2) remove such facilities 
and restore the streets, alleys, parks and public places of the City to a reasonably as good 
condition as before such removal; or (3) any combination of the foregoing, all at Company’ 
s cost and expense. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the City and Company from mutually 
agreeing to extend the term of this Franchise Ordinance so as to allow for good faith 

10

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 7 
 

7 
 

negotiations on a new Franchise Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 11. Transfer and Assignment. Company shall not transfer this Franchise 
nor any rights and privileges granted herein without the written approval of the Council 
expressed by Ordinance, provided however, that the Company may transfer this Franchise to 
another wholly owned affiliate of the Company upon thirty days’ prior written notice, if 
(i) such new affiliate accepts the Franchise under its then current terms and conditions and 
assumes liability for all acts and omissions of its predecessors and (ii) Company provides 
a guarantee of such new affiliate’s performance in a form acceptable to the City. Such 
approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The Company may assign this 
Franchise only for the purpose of securing corporate financing for the Company. 

 
SECTION 12. City and Company. Whenever the words “the Company” occur in this 
Franchise Ordinance, it shall mean and shall be understood to be Texas Community 
Propane, Ltd., and its successors, lessees, assigns, individual, co-partnership, corporation, 
receiver, or other person or authority owning or operating such franchise or plant under 
authority of an ordinance of the City approving such transfer or assignment; and whenever 
the words “authority”, “proper authority”, or “City” occur in this Franchise Ordinance they 
mean and shall be understood to be the authorized officer or officers, committee, city council, 
commission or other body representing the City of Manor, Texas. 

 
SECTION 13. Franchise Fees. (a) As full consideration for the rights and privileges conferred 
by this Franchise Ordinance, and as a charge for the use of the streets, alleys and public ways, 
Company shall collect from its customers and pay to the City a sum of money, known as the 
“Franchise Fee”, equal to the sum of the following: (1) four percent (4%) of Company’s actual 
Gross Receipts from Gas Sales (as defined in Section l3(b)) to Company’s gas sales customers 
located in the City; plus (2) four percent (4%) of Company’s actual Gross Receipts from Gas 
Transportation (as defined in Section 13(b)) to Company’s gas transportation customers with 
re-delivery points located in the City; plus (3) four percent (4%) of Company’s actual Gross 
Receipts from Utility Regulated Service Charges (as defined in Section 13(b)). 

 
(b) Subject to the other provisions herein, Gross Receipts from Gas Sales shall be and 

include: (1) the Company’s total receipts from its gas sales to its customers located within the 
corporate limits of the City consisting of the following receipts: (i) cost of service and (ii) 
purchased gas and applicable revenue tax adjustments; (2) Gross Receipts from Gas 
Transportation which shall be defined as the Company’s total receipts from its transportation 
of third party gas for re-delivery to customers with re-delivery points located within the 
corporate limits of the City, consisting of receipts from cost of service; provided that 
Company’s Gross Receipts from Gas Sales and Gross Receipts from Gas Transportation 
subject to the Franchise Fee shall specifically exclude, without limitation: (1) receipts from 
non-regulated miscellaneous service charges (e.g. charges for appliance light- ups, returned 
checks, etc.); (2) receipts from gas sales or gas transportation services to customers located at 

11

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 8 
 

8 
 

delivery points outside the corporate limits of the City; (3) receipts from gas consumed or 
transported by Company for its own use; (4) bad debt or uncollected accounts; (5) receipts 
collected for gas utility taxes; (6) receipts for any taxes, assessments, charges or fees of any 
kind charged by a governmental entity, other than Franchise Fees and gross receipts taxes; (7) 
receipts for construction advances or contributions in aid of construction; (8) receipts for 
maintenance of appliances, machinery or equipment; (9) receipts for compensation for 
damage to Company’s property; (10) receipts from sales of materials, appliances or equipment, 
and (11) receipts from any non-regulated utility or non-regulated services or products. Utility 
Regulated Service Charges are charges for services (but not for propane gas sales or 
transportation services) that (a) Company provides to its customers located within the corporate 
limits of the City and (b) which are or may, from time to time, become subject to the rate 
regulation of the applicable regulatory authority. Such Utility Regulated Service Charges shall 
include receipts of Company from its customers in the City for connections, dis-connections 
and meter tests. Such Utility Regulated Service Charges shall not include receipts of Company 
from its customers in the City for appliance sales, appliance light- ups, maintenance of 
customer equipment or facilities and any other receipts that are not legally subject to the rate 
regulation of the applicable regulatory authority. 

 
(c) Company shall collect from its customers and pay the City under the terms 

of this Franchise Ordinance, the franchise fee and gross receipts above provided based upon 
meters read on or after the effective date of this Franchise Ordinance. During the term of 
this Franchise Ordinance, Company shall collect from its customers and pay the City in May 
and November for the preceding six months, not including April and May and October and 
November. Company shall include with the Franchise Fee payment a statement showing its 
gross Receipts from Gas Sales, Gas Transportation in the City and Utility Regulated 
Service Charges in the City, including the calculation of the Franchise Fee for the subject 
time period. Collection and payment of Franchise Fees shall be final as to both parties unless 
questioned by written notice provided to the other party within (3) years after payment 
thereof has been made. 

 
(d) It is expressly agreed that the Franchise Fee payments shall be in lieu of any 

payments for the right to use the public rights-of- way of the City, including expressly the 
charge permitted to be levied by Texas Tax Code §§ 182.021-182.026 and 182.081-182.082, 
or any successor statute permitting such a charge, however designated. The Franchise 
Fee shall be in lieu of and accepted as payment of all of Company’s obligations to 
pay all other franchise, license, easement or occupation taxes, levies, exactions, fees, rentals, 
franchise fees, easement taxes, or charges of any kind whatsoever which may be levied or 
attempted to be levied in general by the City for the use of City’s rights- of- way, with 
the sole exception of sales taxes, and ad valorem taxes. It is specifically provided however 
that this subsection shall not release, waive, or apply to the imposition of any fine, penalty 
or charge arising and imposed as a result of the violation of a rule, regulations or ordinance. 
This section shall not be construed to waive any building or construction permit fees or inspect 
ion fees. 

12

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 9 
 

9 
 

 
(e) It is expressly agreed by the City that the Franchise Fees defined in this 

Franchise Ordinance are a reasonable and necessary operating expense of Company and 
shall be fully recovered by Company by collection from its customers in the City, whether 
asserted retroactively or prospectively, by revising its rate schedules, assessing an additional 
charge to the monthly bills of its customers within the City, adding an additional charge 
to the Company’s purchased gas adjustment clause for the City or in any legal manner 
determined in Company’s discretion. 

 
(f) The City may, upon reasonable prior written notice and during reasonable business 

hours, inspect and review the books and records of Company to verify the amount of 
Franchise Fees due. It is understood and agreed that such representative may be an 
independent agent, assigned by the City Council to conduct the inspection of Company’s 
books and records for the reconciliation of Franchise Fee payments to determine the 
accuracy thereof 

 
(g) The rights, privileges, and franchises granted by this Franchise Ordinance 

are not to be considered exclusive, and City hereby expressly reserves the right to grant, at 
any time as it may see fit, like privileges, rights, and franchises to any other person or 
corporation for the purpose of furnishing gas in the City. In the event any entity 
providing propane gas service to customers within the City (other than Company) is not 
legally required to pay the same or an equivalent Franchise Fee as required to be collected 
and paid by Company in this Franchise Ordinance, then with respect to propane gas 
sales or transportation service to those specific customers, Company’s Franchise Fee 
obligation resulting from sales or transportation service to those specific customers may be 
automatically reduced by Company to a level equivalent to the amount the City legally 
requires to be paid by such other entity. 

 
(h) The City shall be paid a franchise fee once with respect to the same gas sold 

and/or transported within the City. Should the City receive or be entitled to receive from any 
other company, firm, corporation or person a franchise fee or similar street rental fee payment 
from the transportation and/or sale of the same or equivalent gas, the aggregate amount which 
the City has received or is entitled to receive with respect to the same or equivalent gas 
transported and/or sold by Company shall be deducted from, and reported with, the Franchise 
Fee payment to be made to the City by Company hereunder. Among other things, this section 
is intended to apply to gas purchased by Company for resale to its customers within the City 
and to Transport Gas redelivered by Company within the City. Among other things, this 
section is intended to apply to gas purchased by Company for resale to its customers within 
the City and to Transport Gas redelivered by Company within the City. Upon request of 
Company, the City agrees to provide Company, within a reasonable time of its receipt, with 
written notice setting forth the amounts of any such franchise fee or other fee received for 
the use of its streets for the transportation or sale of gas in the City that is ultimately 

13

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 10 
 

10 
 

transported or delivered through Company’s system in the City. 
 

(i) It is recognized by the City that the intent of sections 13(g) and 13(h) is to 
insure that, with respect to Franchise Fees, Company is on a level playing field with its 
competitors so as to avoid unjust discrimination against Company. 

 
SECTION 14. Annexation. The City shall notify Company in writing of the annexation of 
any new territory into the City limits by providing maps that highlight the newly annexed 
territories. Upon receipt of notice of annexation from the City, Company shall have ninety (90) 
days to begin collecting and paying the Franchise Fee for any revenues received from 
Company’s customers residing in the newly annexed territories. In the event Company has 
constructed mainlines, service pipes, or other facilities on the annexed property prior to 
annexation, the Company agrees to file as-built plans with the City identifying all mains and 
storage facilities.  

 
SECTION 15. Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the City and the Company, 
or any of its affiliates (collectively the “Parties”, or individually a “Party”), relating to this 
Franchise Ordinance, the Parties agree to use the following procedure prior to either Party 
pursuing other available remedies: 
 

(a) A meeting shall be held promptly between the Parties, attended by individuals 
with decision-making authority (or telephone access to such individuals) regarding the dispute, 
to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the dispute. 

 
(b) If within thirty (30) days after such meeting, the Parties have not succeeded in 

negotiating a resolution of this dispute, they will jointly appoint a mutually acceptable 
arbitrator qualified by education and training to rule upon the matter in controversy and not 
affiliated with either of the Parties (the “Arbitrator”). In the event the Parties have been 
unable to agree upon such appointment within fifty (50) days from the initial meeting, the 
Parties will seek the assistance of the American Arbitration Association or other mutually 
agreeable dispute resolution organization to appoint the Arbitrator, who shall have a 
reasonable level of experience with similar issues. The fees of the Arbitrator shall be shared 
equally by the Parties. Each Party in such proceedings shall bear the costs and expenses of its 
counsel, witnesses, and employees. All other costs and expenses of the arbitration proceeding 
shall be borne equally by both Parties. 

 
(c) The Arbitrator shall promptly hear and determine the controversy, dispute, or 

question in accordance with the provisions of the Texas General Arbitration Act or other 
mutually agreeable arbitration act. The Arbitrator shall render a final award within ninety (90) 
days following the date upon which the Arbitrator is appointed. The Parties agree that the 
Arbitrator may award all available contractual remedies to the Parties, including injunctive 
relief, if necessary. 

  

14

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 11 
 

11 
 

 
(d) All arbitration proceedings hereunder shall be subject to the Texas General 

Arbitration Act, and any amendments thereto (unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing 
by the Parties), where such act is not in conflict with the provisions hereto; provided that 
notwithstanding any other term, provision or condition hereof, or the Act, as amended. 

 
SECTION 16. Indemnity. In consideration of the granting of this Franchise, Company agrees 
that City shall not be liable or responsible for, and Company does hereby release, agree to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers and employees, from and 
against any and all suits, actions, or claims of injury to any person, or damages to or loss of 
any property brought or made for or on account of any death, injuries to, or damages received 
or sustained by or on behalf of any person or persons, firm, corporation, or other entity, arising 
out of or occasioned by the Company’s construction, operation, maintenance, or management 
of its transmission or distribution system, or arising from any act of negligence of the 
Company, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees, or licenses, including a breach 
of the Company’s obligation under this Franchise Ordinance to provide the City information 
contained in written reports that is free of material misrepresentation, and from and against all 
costs, counsel fees, expenses and liabilities incurred in or about any such claim or proceeding 
brought thereon; except that the indemnity provided for in this paragraph shall not apply to any 
liability resulting from the negligence or intentional acts or omissions of the City, its officers 
and employees. In the event that any action, suit, or proceeding is brought against City upon 
any liability arising out of the construction, operations, or maintenance of the Company’s 
facilities, City shall give notice in writing to Company by Registered or Certified Mail. Upon 
receipt of such notice, the Company, at its own expense, shall defend such action and take all 
such steps as may be necessary or proper to prevent the obtaining of a judgment against the City 
and/or to satisfy said judgment. City agrees to cooperate with Company in connection with such 
defense. In the event a claim allegedly arises from the concurrent fault of both the City and the 
Company, the Company must indemnify the City to the full proportionate extent to which the 
Company is found to be responsible. The City shall promptly notify the Company by registered 
or certified mail of any claim or cause of action which may be asserted against the City relating 
to or covering any matter against which the Company has agreed, as set forth above, to 
indemnify, defend and save harmless the City. The Company reserves the right, but not the 
obligation, to employ such attorneys, expert witnesses, and consultants as it deems necessary 
to defend against the claim or cause of action. The Company shall have the right to investigate, 
defend and compromise all claims referred to herein after conferring with the City’s legal 
department. It is understood that it is not the intention of either the City or the Company to 
create liability, right or claim for the benefit of third parties and this Franchise Ordinance is 
intended and shall be construed for the sole benefit of the City and the Company. 

 
  

15

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 12 
 

12 
 

SECTION 17. Anti-Boycott Verification.  To the extent this Franchise Ordinance constitutes 
a contract for goods or services within the meaning of Section 2270.002 of the Texas 
Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2270 of the 
Texas Government Code, and subject to applicable Federal law, Company represents that 
neither Company nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent 
company or affiliate of Company (i) boycotts Israel or (ii) will boycott Israel through the term 
of this Franchise Ordinance. The terms “boycotts Israel” and “boycott Israel” as used in this 
paragraph have the meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
SECTION 18. Iran, Sudan and Foreign Terrorist Organizations. To the extent this 
Franchise Ordinance constitutes a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 
2252.151 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with 
Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code, and except to the extent otherwise required by 
applicable federal law, Company represents that Company nor any wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Contractor is a company listed by 
the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
SECTION 19. Anti-Boycott Verification – Energy Companies.  The Company hereby 
verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other 
affiliates, if any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies 
during the term of this Franchise Ordinance.  The foregoing verification is made solely to 
comply with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code, and to the extent such Section is not 
inconsistent with a governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the 
issuance, incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, 
borrowing, or investment of funds.  As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy 
company” means, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating 
business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict 
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a company because the company: (A) 
engages in the exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of 
fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge to meet environmental standards 
beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business with a company described by the 
preceding statement in (A). 
 
SECTION 20. Anti-Discrimination Verification – Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade 
Associations.  The Company hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, 
guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association 
and will not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm 
entity or firearm trade association during the term of this Franchise Ordinance.  The foregoing 
verification is made solely to comply with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code.  As 

16

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 13 
 

13 
 

used in the foregoing verification, “discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association” means: (i)  refuse to engage in the trade of any goods or services with the entity 
or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; (ii)  
refrain from continuing an existing business relationship with the entity or association based 
solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; or (iii)  terminate an existing 
business relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity 
or firearm trade association; but does not include (a)  the established policies of a merchant, 
retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition, firearms, 
or firearm accessories; or (b)  a company's refusal to engage in the trade of any goods or 
services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business relationship, or decision to 
terminate an existing business relationship to comply with federal, state, or local law, policy, 
or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency; or for any traditional business reason that 
is specific to the customer or potential customer and not based solely on an entity's or 
association's status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 
 
SECTION 21. Savings Clause. The City Council of the City of Manor, Texas hereby declares 
that if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, work or portion of this 
ordinance is declared invalid, or unconstitutional, by a court of competent jurisdiction, that, in 
such event that it would have passed and ordained any and all remaining portions of this ordinance 
without the inclusion of that portion or portions which may be so found to be unconstitutional or 
invalid, and declares that its intent is to make no portion of this ordinance dependent upon the 
validity of any portion thereof, and that all said remaining portions shall continue in full force and 
effect. 
 
SECTION 22. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 23. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was considered was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

 
SECTION 24. Effective Date. This Franchise Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
from and after its final passage and approval by the City Council in accordance with the general 
laws of the State of Texas and the acceptance hereof in writing by Company as herein 
provided. 

 
SECTION 25. Acceptance. The Company shall, within sixty (60) days from the approval 
of this Franchise Ordinance signed by the Mayor, file in the office of the City Secretary its 
consent to and written acceptance of provisions and conditions of this Franchise Ordinance. 

17

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 14 
 

14 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this 4th day of January 2023.  
 

FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this  day of  , 20___. 
 
 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
             
       Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
  
       
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  
  

18

Item 1.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 15 
 

15 
 

The above and foregoing Franchise Ordinance of the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, 
Ordinance No. _________, and the grants, franchise, powers, rights, and privileges thereto 
were accepted by Texas Community Propane, Ltd., on and as of the _____ day of 
____________, 20___.  
 
 
 
      TEXAS COMMUNITY PROPANE, LTD. 
 
      BY: ________________________________ 
 
      NAME: _____________________________ 
 
      TITLE: _____________________________ 
 
 

19

Item 1.



   2 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: January 4, 2023 

PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the December 21, 2022, 
City Council Regular Meeting. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

    •  December 21, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the City Council Minutes of the December 21, 
2022, City Council Regular Meeting.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

20

Item 2.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES 

DECEMBER 21, 2022 
 

City of Manor  Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1  
Anne Weir, Place 2  
Maria Amezcua, Place 3 (Absent) 
Sonia Wallace, Place 4  (Absent) 
Aaron Moreno, Place 5  
Deja Hill, Place 6  
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Scott Moore, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 
Matthew Woodard, Public Works Director  
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer 
 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.  
 
 With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council 
was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 7:04 p.m. on Wednesday, December 21, 2022, in the 
Council Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Mayor Harvey led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

21

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS     
 
 Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and expressed 
his thoughts regarding the Bocce Ball Courts, the Comprehensive Plan and the Scenic Texas 
Award.   
 
 Mayor Harvey expressed his gratitude and thanked the community, organizations, and 
businesses for what they do and for making the City of Manor a great city.   
 

No one else appeared at this time.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance for the Final Planned Use Development for 
the New Haven Subdivision, two hundred and seventy-two (272) lots on 90.3 acres, more 
or less, and being located near the intersections of Gregg Ln and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 
Applicant: Drenner Group: Owner: Ashton Grey Development 
 
 The city staff recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing. 
 
 Mayor Harvey opened the public hearing.    
 
 Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and spoke 
in regard to adding lights in the park and adding additional parking.  He also suggested for 
additional amenities to be added to the park.  
  
 Charley Dorsaneo, Drenner Group, 2705 Bee Caves Rd., Suite 100, Austin, TX 78746 
discussed the attached proposed updates to the Planned Use Development for the New Haven 
Subdivision.  
 
 Director of Development Services Dunlop discussed the comments from a nearby neighbor 
regarding the roadway alignment and arrangements regarding the property owner’s 8 acres of 
land.   

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Deja Hill and seconded by Council Member 

Weir, to close the Public Hearing.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 5-0     

 
  

22

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
2.  Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes. 
 
    • December 7, 2022, City Council Workshop; and      
    • December 7, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting 
 
3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the November 2022 

Departmental Reports.    
 
       •  Economic Development – Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 
       •  Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
      •  Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager 
      •  Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police     
      •  Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 
     •  Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 
       •  Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
       •  Human Resources – Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
      •  IT – Phil Green, IT Director 
      •  Administration – Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

       • Travis County ESD No. 12 – Ryan Smith, Fire Chief 
   • Manor Cemetery – Nora Sanchez, MC Manager 
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 

Moreno to approve the Consent Agenda.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0     
 
REGULAR AGENDA 

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 24 to the 
Master Services Agreement between the City of Manor and George Butler Associates, 
Inc. for the preparation and submittal of an amendment to the current minor discharge 
permit for the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). 

   
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the Statement of Work No. 24 

to the Master Services Agreement between the City of Manor and George Butler Associates, 
Inc. for the preparation and submittal of an amendment to the current minor discharge permit 
for the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). 

 
  City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed Statement of Work to the Master Services 

Agreement for the preparation and submittal of an amendment to the current minor discharge 
permit for the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 

23

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 

   
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Emily Hill to approve the Statement of Work No. 24 to the Master Services 
Agreement between the City of Manor and George Butler Associates, Inc. for the 
preparation and submittal of an amendment to the current minor discharge permit for 
the Cottonwood Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 
 Discussion was held regarding the clarification on the expansion of the plant phases.   
 
  Discussion was held regarding the future funding for additional plant expansions.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the completion of all plant phases.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the cooperation with other neighborhood cities.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0   
 
5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a change order to the construction 

contract for the FM 973 Water Main project. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Change Order No. 3 to the 

construction contract for the FM 973 12” Water Main project with M&C Fonseca Construction 
Company, Inc. in the amount of $31,220.00.   
 

  City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed change order to the construction contract for 
the FM 973 Water Main project. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Emily Hill to approve a change order to the construction contract for the FM 973 
Water Main project with M&C Fonseca Construction Company, Inc. in the amount 
of $31,220.00.   
 

  Discussion was held regarding the installation of a new waterline for three properties.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the fees associated with upgrades.   
 
There was no further discussion 
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0   
  
 
 
    
 

24

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

6 First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance for the 
Final Planned Use Development for the New Haven Subdivision, two hundred and 
seventy-two (272) lots on 90.3 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersections 
of Gregg Ln and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. Applicant: Drenner Group; Owner: Ashton Grey 
Development 

 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance 

for the Final Planned Use Development for the New Haven Subdivision, two hundred and 
seventy-two (272) lots on 90.3 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersections of 
Gregg Ln and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 

 
 Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Unit A, Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 
spoke in regard to adding solar panel lighting in the park and adding other different amenities 
for teens.  
 
 Charley Dorsaneo, Drenner Group, 2705 Bee Caves Rd., Suite 100, Austin, Texas, 
discussed the proposed teen amenities and expresses his concerns regarding adding additional 
lightning in the park areas.  

 
 Ordinance: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending Chapter 14, Zoning of 
the City of Manor, Texas Code of Ordinances Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Agricultural to 
Planned Unit Development (PUD); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related 
Matters. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Weir, to approve the first reading of an ordinance for the Final Planned Use 
Development for the New Haven Subdivision, two hundred and seventy-two (272) 
lots on 90.3 acres, more or less, and being located near the intersections of Gregg Ln 
and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 

  
  Mayor Harvey requested for Mr. Dorsaneo meet with the Park Committee regarding future 

park implementations prior to finalizing the development.  
 
  Council Member Deja Hill inquired about the clarification on the completion of the 

Thoroughfare Plan.   
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop explained the Throughfare Map Plan.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the density of property for future development.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to postpone carried 5-0   
  

25

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

Ordinance adopting Destination 2050, the City of Manor Comprehensive Plan. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the second reading of Ordinance 

No. 685 adopting Destination 2050, the City of Manor Comprehensive Plan.   
   
  Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Unit A, Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 

expressed his concerns regarding the plan.   
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop clarified that there were no cancelations of town 

meetings regarding the plan.  
 
  Chance Sparks with Freese and Nichols clarified the process for determining the ADA 

compliances for parks and how items are prioritized per residential requests.  Mr. Sparks spoke 
in regard to the proposed new downtown development that will cater to the Manor family-
oriented community.   

 
  Discussion was held regarding the city’s link Manor2050.  
 
  Ordinance No. 685 : An Ordinance Adopting the City of Manor, Texas, Comprehensive 

Plan Analyzing Population, Race and Ethnicity, Age Distribution, Economic, Housing and 
Financial Trends; Providing For a Vision Statement and Guiding Principles; Analyzing 
Existing Land Uses; Providing Maps Describing Proposed Future Land Uses and 
Recommended Land Use Policies and Procedures; Describing Goals and Guiding Principles 
For Transportation and Mobility, Parks And Recreation, Economic Development, 
Infrastructure and Facilities, and Downtown and Urban Design; Describing Implementation 
Tools; Providing Severability, Savings Clause, Open Meetings and Effective Date Clauses; 
and Providing for Related Matters. 

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Weir, to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 685 adopting Destination 
2050, the City of Manor Comprehensive Plan.   
 

  Economic Development Director Jones stated ED recommendations had been included in 
the plan.   

 
  Discussion was held regarding the P&Z Commission recommendations to the plan.  
 
  Council Member Deja Hill asked if the Police Department and EMS had any comments or 

recommendations to the plan.  Chief Phipps stated at this time he did not have any comments 
but could provide recommendations on a later date.    

 
  Discussion was held regarding fireworks restrictions and regulations within the city.  
 

26

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 

  Discussion was held regarding healthcare and wellness activities or services within the 
community.  

 
  Economic Development Director Jones suggested for the plan to be reviewed and discussed 

frequently by staff and/or council.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the clarification on city’s priority list.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0   
 
8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the First Amendment to Development 

Agreement Establishing Development Standards for Monarch Ranch. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the First Amendment to 

Development Agreement Establishing Development Standards for Monarch Ranch.  
 
  Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Unit A, Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 

spoke in regard to the parkland fees.  
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed amendment to the 

development agreement for Monarch Ranch.    
  
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Deja Hill and seconded by Council Member 

Moreno, to approve the First Amendment to Development Agreement Establishing 
Development Standards for Monarch Ranch.  
 

  Discussion was held regarding the clarification of the parkland space within the 
development.  

 
  Discussion was held regarding the proposed amenities within the park development.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0   
 
9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the City of Manor, Texas Deposit 

Agreement for the Proposed Water Service Transfer for the Monarch Ranch at Manor 
Project. 

 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the City of Manor, Texas 

Deposit Agreement for the Proposed Water Service Transfer for the Monarch Ranch at Manor 
Project. 

 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed deposit agreement.  

27

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 8 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 
Weir, to approve Deposit Agreement for the Proposed Water Service Transfer for the 
Monarch Ranch at Manor Project and authorize the City Manager to execute the 
agreement.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0 
 
10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the 2023 State Legislative Agenda for 

the City of Manor. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the 2023 State Legislative 

Agenda for the City of Manor.  
 
  Mayor Harvey discussed the priorities and key legislative issues for the City of Manor. 
 
  Mayor Harvey suggested for Workforce Housing to be added to Affordable Housing 

section under Key Legislative Issues. 
 
  City Manager Moore expressed his thoughts regarding the Legislative Agenda.  
 
  Mayor Harvey suggested for healthcare to be added to the Priorities section with Tech & 

Manufacturing to attract employers to the region, e.g., bio techs companies.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding how the priorities were geared towards the TML Region 10 

cities and not only the City of Manor.  
   
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Weir, to approve the 2023 State Legislative Agenda for the City of Manor with 
proposed changes as discussed.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0   
 
11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the First Amendment to the Earnest 

Money Contract for the purchase of property located on Ring Road. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the First Amendment to the 

Earnest Money Contract for the purchase of property located on Ring Road. 
 
  Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Unit A, Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 

spoke in regard to a new downtown development and suggested for the new city facilities to 
be built in a different location with parkland.  

 

28

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 9 
 
 
 
 
 

  Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed amendment to the Earnest Money 
Contract for the purchase of property located on Ring Rd.  

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Emily Hill to approve the Earnest Money Contract for the purchase of property 
located on Ring Road and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement.  
 

There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0   
 
12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on authorizing the City Manager to 

negotiate a contract for consulting services with Raftelis. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve and authorize the City Manager 

in negotiating and executing a contract for consulting services with Raftelis.  
 
  City Manager Moore discussed the proposed consulting services with Raftelis.   

    
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Emily Hill, to approve and authorize the City Manager in negotiation and executing 
a contract for consulting services with Raftelis.  
 

 Discussion was held regarding service fees.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-0 
  
13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Website Services Agreement with 

CivicPlus. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve a website services agreement 

with CivicPlus.  
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed agreement for website 

services with CivicPlus. 
 
  Discussion was held regarding discounts offered.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the add-on’s Directory for Parks and Trails and Properties.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the termination clause.  
 

City Secretary Almaraz discussed the upgraded features CivicPlus offers for Meetings & 
Agendas regarding videos.  

29

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 10 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Discussion was held regarding other modules that are offered regarding designs and 

communications.  
 
Chief Phipps discussed the current app that is used for emergency alerts. He suggested for 

the city to have a separate one for city events and non-emergency notifications.  
      
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 

Moreno, to approve a website services agreement with CivicPlus. 
 
 Discussion was held regarding the limitation on texts to the community.  
 
  Mayor Harvey suggested for additional information to be provided regarding texting to be 

brought back to council for discussion.   
 
  Discussion was held regarding the Terms and Termination of the agreement.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the project timeline. 
 
  Discussion was held regarding storage capacity.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding download availability.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 4-1 (Mayor Pro Tem Emily Hill voted against)  
 
14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Professional Services Agreement with 

CitizenLab. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services 

Agreement with CitizenLab.    
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed service agreement.  
 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Emily Hill to approve a Professional Services Agreement with CitizenLab. 
 

 Discussion was held regarding samples of projects that the app would be used for. 
 
 Discussion was held regarding the comparison cost of the other proposed vendors.      
 
 
 
There was no further discussion.  
 

30

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 11 
 
 
 
 
 

Motion to approve carried 4-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)  
 
15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance granting Texas 

Community Propane Inc. the right, privilege and franchise to use streets, alleys and 
thoroughfares to operate and maintain a propane distribution system in the City of 
Manor. 

 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council postpone the item to the January 4, 2023, 

Regular Council meeting due to Charter regulations for franchise agreements.   
    

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 
Deja Hill to postpone item to the January 4, 2023, Regular Council meeting.     
 

There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to postpone carried 5-0  
 
16. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the EPCOR 130 Project, Inc. Wholesale 

Water Agreement. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council postpone item until January 2023 due to 

ongoing discussions.  
 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Deja Hill to postpone item to January 2023.   
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to postpone carried 5-0  
 
17. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointment of two (2) Public Tree 

Advisory P&Z Board Members; and a chairperson to serve a two-year term. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council appoint two (2) Public Tree Advisory 

P&Z Board Members; and a chairperson to serve a two-year term. 
 
  Development Services Directed Dunlop stated that P&Z Commissioner’s Julie Leonard; 

LaKesha Small were interested in being reappointed and also newly member Felix Paiz 
volunteered for new appointment.  
    

MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 
Deja Hill to appoint Council Member Wallace as Chair and appoint P&Z 
Commissioner’s Julie Leonard and Felix Paiz to the Public Tree Advisory 
Committee.     

There was no further discussion.  
 

31

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 12 
 
 
 
 
 

Motion to approve carried 5-0  

 Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session 
at 9:40 p.m. on Wednesday, December 21, 2022, in accordance with the requirements of the Open 
Meetings Law.     
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 The Manor City Council convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in -  Section 551.071, 
Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to 
consult with legal counsel regarding 12700 Sparks Road; Section 551.071, Texas Government 
Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal 
counsel regarding the EPCOR Wholesale Water Agreement; Section 551.071 and Section 551.087, 
Texas Government Code to deliberate on the acquisition of real property; and Sections 551.071, 
and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the EntradaGlen PID at 9:40 p.m. on Wednesday, 
December 21, 2022.   

 The Executive Session was adjourned at 11:13 p.m. on Wednesday, December 21, 2022  
 
OPEN SESSION   
 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session at 
11:13 p.m. on Wednesday, December 21 2022. 
  
There was no action taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Regular Session of the Manor City Council Adjourned at 11:13 p.m. on Wednesday, 
December 21, 2022.   
 
 These minutes approved by the Manor City Council on the 4th day of January 2023. (Audio 
recording archived) 
  

32

Item 2.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
December 21, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 13 
 
 
 
 
 

 
APPROVED:  
 
________________________________ 
Dr. Christopher Harvey  
Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

33

Item 2.



Newhaven PUD

Gregg Lane

City Council – December 21, 2022

2022-P-1480-ZO (Final PUD) – Item 6

1

34

Item 2.



2

Site Aerial

35

Item 2.



3

Site Aerial - Existing

36

Item 2.



4

City Limits Map

37

Item 2.



5

City of Manor Comprehensive Plan (Not yet adopted)

38

Item 2.



• Mix of Uses: 

• Single Family Residential – mix of 50’ & 60’ lots

• Commercial

• Utility (future water tower)

• Landscaping: 

• Gregg Lane: 15’ wide buffer; four 3” caliper trees & fifteen 3 gal shrubs for every 200 linear feet

• Single Family Lots: Two 2” trees & six 2 gal shrubs per lot

• Collector Road : 10’ wide buffer; one 3” caliper tree & five 3 gal shrubs for every 50 linear feet

• Parkland: 

• Fee-in-lieu

• Creek-side trail 

• 2 amenitized parks

• Utility Lot: 

• Dedication of 2.0 acres to City of Manor for Water Storage

6

Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

39

Item 2.



7

Site Aerial - Proposed

40

Item 2.



8

Proposal Highlights

TRAIL

THOROUGHFARE 

PLAN

41

Item 2.



9

Nature Preserve and Trail

• 5,300 linear feet of trail, 

• Connected to and consistent 
with trail to south, stubbed 
out to connect to north

• Concrete trail and park 
bench amenities along trail

42

Item 2.



10

Interior Parks

• Amenitized with shade 
structures, playgrounds, 
swing set, gazebo, benches, 
& picnic tables

• Complementary to parkland 
dedication fee

• Off-Street Parking

43

Item 2.



11

Thoroughfare Plan (Not yet adopted)

44

Item 2.



12

Council Conditions

45

Item 2.



13

Commission Condition

46

Item 2.



Approval of the Final Planned Unit Development (1st reading)

14

Request

47

Item 2.



15

48

Item 2.



16

Site Aerial – Adjacent Development

49

Item 2.



17

Adjacent Developments Relative to Thoroughfare Plan

50

Item 2.



18

Nature Preserve and Trail

• 5,300 linear feet of trail, 

• Connected to and consistent 
with trail to south, stubbed 
out to connect to north

• Concrete trail and park 
bench amenities along trail

51

Item 2.



19

Interior Parks

• Amenitized with shade 
structures, playgrounds, 
swing set, gazebo, benches, 
& picnic tables

• Complementary to parkland 
dedication fee

• Off-Street Parking

52

Item 2.



20

Streets and Right of Way

• In compliance with City’s Thoroughfare Plan

53

Item 2.



21

Water Storage Site

54

Item 2.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: January 4, 2023 
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance granting Texas Community 
Propane Inc. the right, privilege and franchise to use streets, alleys and thoroughfares to operate and 
maintain a propane distribution system in the City of Manor. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:   

On April 17, 2002, the City Council approved Ordinance 200 with Texas Community Propane with a term of 
20 years.  It is common for public utilities in the State of Texas to secure long term agreements and allow 
them time to plan and fund their infrastructure upgrades throughout the community and region.  The City of 
Manor has been fortunate to from partnerships with other public utilities by investing and providing quality 
services to our residents and businesses and extending this agreement would be a consistent business 
practice for our organization. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Ordinance  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance granting Texas 
Community Propane Inc. the right, privilege and franchise to use streets, alleys and thoroughfares to 
operate and maintain a propane distribution system in the City of Manor. 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

55

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS GRANTING TO 
TEXAS COMMUNITY PROPANE, INC. THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AND 
FRANCHISE TO USE STREETS, ALLEYS, AND THOUROUGHFARES 
TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A PROPANE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 
IN THE CITY OF MANOR, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING 
REGULATIONS FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE SYSTEM; MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 

WHEREAS, Texas Community Propane, Ltd., a Texas domestic limited partnership 
registered to do business in the State of Texas (the “Company”) desires to continue operating 
a propane gas utility system within the City of Manor, Texas (the “City”); and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to offer the Company a franchise renewal 
on such terms and conditions as will provide the City with control and options necessary to 
provide for the public good; and 

 
WHEREAS, after providing at least ten (10) days’ notice, a public hearing was held on this 
franchise renewal; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 121 of the Texas Utilities Code authorizes the City to adopt ordinances 
that establish conditions for mapping, inventorying, locating, or relocating pipelines over, 
under, along, or across a public street or alley or private residential area in the boundaries of 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City strives to promote orderly and safe development within the territorial 
limits of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas (the “City Council”) finds that this 
Ordinance authorizing the City to renew a franchise with Company under certain conditions is 
in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1.  Findings of Fact. That all of the above recitals and findings of fact are found 
to be true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
  

56

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2 
 

2 
 

SECTION 2. Grant of Franchise. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Franchise 
Ordinance, the right, privilege and franchise is hereby granted to the Company, and to its 
successors, lessees, and assigns, as are authorized and approved by ordinance, to have, own, 
acquire, install, construct, reconstruct, operate, maintain, use, and extend a system of mains, 
pipelines, conduits, valves, feeders, regulator stations, laterals, service lines, measuring 
devices, and all other necessary plants, attachments, land, structures facilities and 
appurtenances (hereinafter the “System”) for the purpose of selling, storing, supplying, 
conveying, transmitting, distributing, and/or transporting propane gas (“Gas”), including the 
equivalent substitutes, for all other lawful purposes in, through, upon, under, and along the 
present and future streets, avenues, alleys, bridges, sidewalks, parks, easements, highways, 
and any other public places including any streams, water courses or water ways within the 
City limits of the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas (the “City”), and including any 
territory that the City may hereafter annex, acquire or purchase; and to distribute, sell, store, 
supply, transport, carry and/or convey Gas through the System in the City to other cities, towns, 
communities and areas outside the City and to inhabitants thereof, for the full term of this 
Franchise Ordinance. This Franchise Ordinance shall in no way affect or impair the present 
or future rights, obligations, or remedies of the City or Company under the Gas Utility 
Regulatory Act, Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 103, as amended. 

 
SECTION 3. Placement of Pipes and Facilities. (a) The mainlines and service pipes of the 
Company shall be laid in alleys, streets, and avenues, and, public utility easements that allow 
the placement of gas mains, and when in streets and avenues, shall be laid parallel with the curb 
line thereof, or in such locations as shall be most practical, provided, however, that in no case 
shall any main be laid less than 24 inches below the established street grade, without permission 
of the City Engineer. The Company is hereby authorized, licensed, and empowered to do any 
and all things necessary and proper to be done and performed in executing the powers and 
utilizing the privileges granted by this Franchise Ordinance, provided the same do not conflict 
with existing infrastructure in the public ways. However, the Company agrees to give the City 
reasonable notice of the dates, location, and nature of work to be performed on the Company’s 
facilities or gas system within the public ways or rights of way. Storage tanks having a capacity 
of 12,900 gallons or greater shall be buried underground. Storage tanks having a capacity of 
less than 12,900 gallons will be either above ground or buried on a case-by-case basis as 
determined by the Company and approved by the City Engineer. Temporary storage tanks of 
any size may remain on site above ground with approval from the City Engineer, provided such 
tanks do not remain at the site longer than fifteen (15) months. Company shall not construct, 
install or erect any facilities or equipment above ground on any such public property without 
specific written permission of the City Engineer, or other proper public authority. 

 
(b) Except in the case of an emergency, when the Company shall desire to lay any 

mains hereunder, and before commencing its construction work, it shall submit to the City 
Engineer, or other proper authority, a pre-construction map or plan showing the streets, 
avenues, alleys, and other public places and the locations thereon wherein it proposes to 

57

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 3 
 

3 
 

construct such pipes and mains. The City Engineer, or other proper authority, shall respond 
in writing to Company within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed twenty (20) 
business days, after Company’s submission either approving or rejecting the plan, and 
if a rejection, listing the reasons for such rejection. Approval by the City Engineer, or other 
proper authority, shall constitute a permit to the Company for the opening of the streets, 
avenues, alleys, and other public places shown on the map or plan, and for the construction 
or laying of the mains and pipes by the Company (the “Permit”) as shown on the plan. 
If the City Engineer, or other proper authority, does not respond within twenty (20) 
business days, the Permit shall be deemed denied. In the event that the Permit is denied, the 
City Engineer, or other proper authority, shall advise Company of the reasons for the denial 
and all necessary steps to secure approval of the Permit by resubmittal. Company shall have 
the right to immediately appeal the issuance of the Permit to the City Manager, and if 
not approved within ten (10) calendar days by the City Manager, the Company may appeal 
to the City Council and be heard at a public meeting held in compliance with applicable law. 
If the Council fails to act on the appeal within twenty-one (21) days, the appeal will be 
deemed to be denied unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Company and the City. Appeal 
of any decision made by the City Council shall be made to the District Court of Travis County, 
Texas. It shall not be necessary for Company to secure a permit for the laying of service 
pipes from the mainline pipes of the Company to its customers. This Section 2(b) shall also 
apply to all other facilities and equipment of the Company to be constructed or installed on 
public property within the City. Upon completion of the construction the Company shall file 
with the City Engineer, or other proper authority, the “as built” plans. 

 
(c) In the refilling of all openings made by the Company, it shall restore the City 

public rights-of- way to a condition reasonably approximate to the original condition, and 
when the Company shall open any ground in the City rights-of-way, the Company shall 
open no more space nor keep the space open any longer than is reasonably necessary to 
properly execute the work for which such space shall have been opened. The Company shall 
at all times display and keep the necessary danger signals and barricades around all excavations 
and obstructions and shall keep sufficient space in good condition for the travel of 
automobiles, trucks, and other motor vehicles, on at least one side of all excavations and 
obstructions. The Company shall comply with all applicable City ordinances, rules, and 
regulations for the repair of cuts and excavations, as are applicable to all other franchisees 
of the City, however, in the event that any term or condition of this franchise conflicts 
with the City’s comprehensive ROW ordinance, this franchise shall prevail. 

 
(d) The Company shall not install any pipe, line or facility within any park or 

recreational land of the City without specific written permission. The Company may petition 
the Council for permission to cross park lands; provided that the grant of any such permission 
shall be in the sole discretion of the Council. 

 

58

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 4 
 

4 
 

(e) When the Company is required by City to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, 
and other facilities to accommodate construction of streets and alleys by City, and Company is 
eligible under federal, state, county, local or other programs for reimbursement of costs and 
expenses incurred by Company as a result of such removal or relocation, and such 
reimbursement is required to be handled through the City, Company shall provide costs and 
expenses to the City to be included in any application by City for reimbursement. Company 
will work with the City to provide appropriate cost and expense documentation to the City 
prior to the filing of the application. When Company is required to remove or relocate its mains, 
laterals or other facilities to accommodate construction of streets or alleys by City without 
reimbursement from City, Company shall have the right to seek a surcharge to recover 
relocation costs pursuant to Section 104.112 et al, of the Texas Utilities Code or any other 
applicable law or regulations. Relocation of any Company mains, pipes or facilities for private 
purposes will be subject to reimbursement. 

 
SECTION 4. Location of Pipes and Facilities; Fleet and Customer Information. 
Company shall cooperate and provide at no cost to the City copies of maps, plans and other 
information depicting and detailing the location of Company’s facilities, pipes, transmission 
lines and related appurtenances within city limits of the City, including full details related to 
anything located in public rights-of- way or within City utility easements. Company shall 
provide City with information related to their vehicle fleet and equipment that will or may be 
operated within the City, specifically detailing weight capacity and/or hazardous 
transport designations.  

 
SECTION 5. Emergency Plan, Coordination. Company shall cooperate and coordinate 
the formation of an emergency plan with the City’s fire department and emergency 
responders in the event of a gas line break, leak or other such failure of the Company’s system 
and related infrastructure. Company shall inform City personnel of actions that will be taken 
by Company under varying emergency situations, including the detection and smell of gas. 
Company shall provide details of tank locations and related infrastructure of Company, the 
locations of emergency shut off valves and other information deemed pertinent by the City’s 
emergency responders. 

 
SECTION 6. Reservations of Rights. All work, activity and undertakings by the 
Company shall be subject to the terms and provisions of this Franchise and the continuing 
exercise by the City of its governmental and police powers; and provided further that nothing 
herein shall be construed to require or authorize Company to exceed any rights granted 
herein or by the Texas Railroad Commission. No fee or other charges of any kind shall be 
imposed upon the Company, or upon any consumer of gas for the breaking or opening of 
any streets or other public rights-of- way or for the laying, construction, or maintenance of 
mainline s, service pipes or other facilities therein except as provided for hereunder. Nothing 
in this Franchise Ordinance shall be construed in such manner as to in any way abridge 

59

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 5 
 

5 
 

the right of the City to pass the necessary police ordinances for the protection of the citizens 
of the City and their property, and the property of the Company, as long as such ordinances 
are not inconsistent with this Franchise Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 7. Damage to Facilities. Subject to an exception for emergencies, the Company 
shall do no permanent injury to any street, avenue, alley, lane, bridge, stream, watercourse, 
park or public place. Any such injury by the Company to any street, avenue, alley, lane, bridge, 
stream, watercourse, park or public place shall be repaired at the cost and expense of the 
Company. Company and City shall exercise reasonable efforts to ensure that any future 
installations of utilities in City rights-of-way by Company, City or other utility providers 
authorized by City do not interfere unnecessarily with any facilities of Company, City or other 
utility providers. In the event of a conflict between the location of the facilities of Company 
and the location of the facilities of City or other utility franchises within the Public Right-of-
Way that cannot otherwise be resolved, City or an authorized agent of City shall resolve the 
conflict and determine the location of the respective facilities.  

 
SECTION 8. Rules and Rates. Company, and its successors and assigns, shall have the 
right to adopt and enforce Rules of Service for service hereunder not inconsistent with law 
or this Franchise Ordinance. Company shall supply propane gas and provide regulated 
services at the rates and under the terms and conditions specified by such rules, its tariffs filed 
with the City and as provided herein. Upon demand, Company shall provide to the City a list 
of all applicable rules, regulations, including state and federal statutes, applicable to 
Company’s business operations conducted within the City. 

 
SECTION 9. Franchise Term. This Franchise Ordinance shall continue and remain 
in full force and effect for a period of twenty (20) years from and after the date it becomes 
effective. 

 
SECTION 10. Option to Purchase. (a) In the event Company shall desire renewal of this 
Franchise Ordinance, the Company shall notify the City within the last twelve (12) months 
of the term of this Franchise Ordinance. If the City refuses to renew this Franchise 
Ordinance with the Company, the City, at the City’s option, shall have the right to 
purchase for cash the distribution plant assets of the Company located within the City, 
and those located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City that are operated as 
one business unit with the assets located within the City, for the market value of such assets, 
appraised as an ongoing business without regard to the lack of a franchise ordinance (the 
“Appraised Value”). 

 
(b) In order to exercise this option to purchase, the City must provide written notice 

the Company of the City’s intention to purchase (the “Notice”), or such option is waived. If 
given, the Notice by City to the Company shall be provided on the later of the following 
times: (i) six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Franchise Ordinance; (ii) six (6) 

60

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 6 
 

6 
 

months after the receipt from the Company of the Company’s notice that it desires to renew 
this Franchise; or (iii) six (6) months after receiving written notice from the Company that the 
Franchise Ordinance has expired. The determination of the Appraised Value shall be 
accomplished as set forth below. The Company and the City shall meet within thirty (30) 
days of the Notice and attempt to reach agreement upon the Appraised Value. In the event 
the Company and the City cannot reach agreement upon the Appraised Value within such thirty 
(30) day period, Company and the City shall each appoint a qualified business appraiser, 
with a reasonable level of experience in business valuations of utility assets. The appraisers 
so appointed shall each render an opinion as to the Appraised Value within ninety (90) days 
of the Notice. If the two opinions differ by 10%, or less, of the higher value, the average of the 
values shall be the Appraised Value. If the two opinions differ by more than 10% of the 
higher value, the appointed appraisers shall select a mutually agreeable independent business 
appraiser (with reasonable business valuation experience), who shall provide an opinion as to 
the Appraised Value to both parties within one hundred fifty (150) days of the Notice. The 
value assigned by the independent appraiser and the closest value assigned by either of the 
appoint ed appraisers shall be averaged to produce the Appraised Value. 

 
(c) Both parties shall use good faith efforts to reach agreement on the terms and 

conditions of the purchase and to close the purchase transaction prior to the expiration 
of the term of the franchise ordinance. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses 
associated with the purchase transaction and shall share equally all costs of the independent 
business appraiser. 

 
(d) In the event the City exercises the option to purchase Company’s system, such 

purchase must be closed within six (6) months following the final determination of the 
Appraised Value pursuant to Subsection 7(b) above. In such event, the franchise term shall 
be deemed extended for such time as required to finalize the purchase of the distribution 
assets of Company, but no longer than six (6) months in any event. ln the event the City 
decides not to purchase Company’s system, or the City is financially unable to close the 
purchase of the Company’s system within the six (6) months, the City’s purchase right 
shall be deemed waived, and the City shall reimburse Company for all of the Company’s 
reasonably necessary costs and expenses expended in preparing for the purchase transaction. 

 
(e) In the event the City does not exercise the option to purchase and this Franchise 

Ordinance is not renewed or extended, at the expiration of the franchise term the Company 
may, at its sole option either: (1) abandon its facilities in place in accordance with the 
Regulations with the Railroad Commission of Texas, in which case the City shall support 
Company’s abandonment filing at the Railroad Commission; or (2) remove such facilities 
and restore the streets, alleys, parks and public places of the City to a reasonably as good 
condition as before such removal; or (3) any combination of the foregoing, all at Company’ 
s cost and expense. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the City and Company from mutually 
agreeing to extend the term of this Franchise Ordinance so as to allow for good faith 

61

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 7 
 

7 
 

negotiations on a new Franchise Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 11. Transfer and Assignment. Company shall not transfer this Franchise 
nor any rights and privileges granted herein without the written approval of the Council 
expressed by Ordinance, provided however, that the Company may transfer this Franchise to 
another wholly owned affiliate of the Company upon thirty days’ prior written notice, if 
(i) such new affiliate accepts the Franchise under its then current terms and conditions and 
assumes liability for all acts and omissions of its predecessors and (ii) Company provides 
a guarantee of such new affiliate’s performance in a form acceptable to the City. Such 
approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The Company may assign this 
Franchise only for the purpose of securing corporate financing for the Company. 

 
SECTION 12. City and Company. Whenever the words “the Company” occur in this 
Franchise Ordinance, it shall mean and shall be understood to be Texas Community 
Propane, Ltd., and its successors, lessees, assigns, individual, co-partnership, corporation, 
receiver, or other person or authority owning or operating such franchise or plant under 
authority of an ordinance of the City approving such transfer or assignment; and whenever 
the words “authority”, “proper authority”, or “City” occur in this Franchise Ordinance they 
mean and shall be understood to be the authorized officer or officers, committee, city council, 
commission or other body representing the City of Manor, Texas. 

 
SECTION 13. Franchise Fees. (a) As full consideration for the rights and privileges conferred 
by this Franchise Ordinance, and as a charge for the use of the streets, alleys and public ways, 
Company shall collect from its customers and pay to the City a sum of money, known as the 
“Franchise Fee”, equal to the sum of the following: (1) four percent (4%) of Company’s actual 
Gross Receipts from Gas Sales (as defined in Section l3(b)) to Company’s gas sales customers 
located in the City; plus (2) four percent (4%) of Company’s actual Gross Receipts from Gas 
Transportation (as defined in Section 13(b)) to Company’s gas transportation customers with 
re-delivery points located in the City; plus (3) four percent (4%) of Company’s actual Gross 
Receipts from Utility Regulated Service Charges (as defined in Section 13(b)). 

 
(b) Subject to the other provisions herein, Gross Receipts from Gas Sales shall be and 

include: (1) the Company’s total receipts from its gas sales to its customers located within the 
corporate limits of the City consisting of the following receipts: (i) cost of service and (ii) 
purchased gas and applicable revenue tax adjustments; (2) Gross Receipts from Gas 
Transportation which shall be defined as the Company’s total receipts from its transportation 
of third party gas for re-delivery to customers with re-delivery points located within the 
corporate limits of the City, consisting of receipts from cost of service; provided that 
Company’s Gross Receipts from Gas Sales and Gross Receipts from Gas Transportation 
subject to the Franchise Fee shall specifically exclude, without limitation: (1) receipts from 
non-regulated miscellaneous service charges (e.g. charges for appliance light- ups, returned 
checks, etc.); (2) receipts from gas sales or gas transportation services to customers located at 

62

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 8 
 

8 
 

delivery points outside the corporate limits of the City; (3) receipts from gas consumed or 
transported by Company for its own use; (4) bad debt or uncollected accounts; (5) receipts 
collected for gas utility taxes; (6) receipts for any taxes, assessments, charges or fees of any 
kind charged by a governmental entity, other than Franchise Fees and gross receipts taxes; (7) 
receipts for construction advances or contributions in aid of construction; (8) receipts for 
maintenance of appliances, machinery or equipment; (9) receipts for compensation for 
damage to Company’s property; (10) receipts from sales of materials, appliances or equipment, 
and (11) receipts from any non-regulated utility or non-regulated services or products. Utility 
Regulated Service Charges are charges for services (but not for propane gas sales or 
transportation services) that (a) Company provides to its customers located within the corporate 
limits of the City and (b) which are or may, from time to time, become subject to the rate 
regulation of the applicable regulatory authority. Such Utility Regulated Service Charges shall 
include receipts of Company from its customers in the City for connections, dis-connections 
and meter tests. Such Utility Regulated Service Charges shall not include receipts of Company 
from its customers in the City for appliance sales, appliance light- ups, maintenance of 
customer equipment or facilities and any other receipts that are not legally subject to the rate 
regulation of the applicable regulatory authority. 

 
(c) Company shall collect from its customers and pay the City under the terms 

of this Franchise Ordinance, the franchise fee and gross receipts above provided based upon 
meters read on or after the effective date of this Franchise Ordinance. During the term of 
this Franchise Ordinance, Company shall collect from its customers and pay the City in May 
and November for the preceding six months, not including April and May and October and 
November. Company shall include with the Franchise Fee payment a statement showing its 
gross Receipts from Gas Sales, Gas Transportation in the City and Utility Regulated 
Service Charges in the City, including the calculation of the Franchise Fee for the subject 
time period. Collection and payment of Franchise Fees shall be final as to both parties unless 
questioned by written notice provided to the other party within (3) years after payment 
thereof has been made. 

 
(d) It is expressly agreed that the Franchise Fee payments shall be in lieu of any 

payments for the right to use the public rights-of- way of the City, including expressly the 
charge permitted to be levied by Texas Tax Code §§ 182.021-182.026 and 182.081-182.082, 
or any successor statute permitting such a charge, however designated. The Franchise 
Fee shall be in lieu of and accepted as payment of all of Company’s obligations to 
pay all other franchise, license, easement or occupation taxes, levies, exactions, fees, rentals, 
franchise fees, easement taxes, or charges of any kind whatsoever which may be levied or 
attempted to be levied in general by the City for the use of City’s rights- of- way, with 
the sole exception of sales taxes, and ad valorem taxes. It is specifically provided however 
that this subsection shall not release, waive, or apply to the imposition of any fine, penalty 
or charge arising and imposed as a result of the violation of a rule, regulations or ordinance. 
This section shall not be construed to waive any building or construction permit fees or inspect 
ion fees. 

63

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 9 
 

9 
 

 
(e) It is expressly agreed by the City that the Franchise Fees defined in this 

Franchise Ordinance are a reasonable and necessary operating expense of Company and 
shall be fully recovered by Company by collection from its customers in the City, whether 
asserted retroactively or prospectively, by revising its rate schedules, assessing an additional 
charge to the monthly bills of its customers within the City, adding an additional charge 
to the Company’s purchased gas adjustment clause for the City or in any legal manner 
determined in Company’s discretion. 

 
(f) The City may, upon reasonable prior written notice and during reasonable business 

hours, inspect and review the books and records of Company to verify the amount of 
Franchise Fees due. It is understood and agreed that such representative may be an 
independent agent, assigned by the City Council to conduct the inspection of Company’s 
books and records for the reconciliation of Franchise Fee payments to determine the 
accuracy thereof 

 
(g) The rights, privileges, and franchises granted by this Franchise Ordinance 

are not to be considered exclusive, and City hereby expressly reserves the right to grant, at 
any time as it may see fit, like privileges, rights, and franchises to any other person or 
corporation for the purpose of furnishing gas in the City. In the event any entity 
providing propane gas service to customers within the City (other than Company) is not 
legally required to pay the same or an equivalent Franchise Fee as required to be collected 
and paid by Company in this Franchise Ordinance, then with respect to propane gas 
sales or transportation service to those specific customers, Company’s Franchise Fee 
obligation resulting from sales or transportation service to those specific customers may be 
automatically reduced by Company to a level equivalent to the amount the City legally 
requires to be paid by such other entity. 

 
(h) The City shall be paid a franchise fee once with respect to the same gas sold 

and/or transported within the City. Should the City receive or be entitled to receive from any 
other company, firm, corporation or person a franchise fee or similar street rental fee payment 
from the transportation and/or sale of the same or equivalent gas, the aggregate amount which 
the City has received or is entitled to receive with respect to the same or equivalent gas 
transported and/or sold by Company shall be deducted from, and reported with, the Franchise 
Fee payment to be made to the City by Company hereunder. Among other things, this section 
is intended to apply to gas purchased by Company for resale to its customers within the City 
and to Transport Gas redelivered by Company within the City. Among other things, this 
section is intended to apply to gas purchased by Company for resale to its customers within 
the City and to Transport Gas redelivered by Company within the City. Upon request of 
Company, the City agrees to provide Company, within a reasonable time of its receipt, with 
written notice setting forth the amounts of any such franchise fee or other fee received for 
the use of its streets for the transportation or sale of gas in the City that is ultimately 

64

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 10 
 

10 
 

transported or delivered through Company’s system in the City. 
 

(i) It is recognized by the City that the intent of sections 13(g) and 13(h) is to 
insure that, with respect to Franchise Fees, Company is on a level playing field with its 
competitors so as to avoid unjust discrimination against Company. 

 
SECTION 14. Annexation. The City shall notify Company in writing of the annexation of 
any new territory into the City limits by providing maps that highlight the newly annexed 
territories. Upon receipt of notice of annexation from the City, Company shall have ninety (90) 
days to begin collecting and paying the Franchise Fee for any revenues received from 
Company’s customers residing in the newly annexed territories. In the event Company has 
constructed mainlines, service pipes, or other facilities on the annexed property prior to 
annexation, the Company agrees to file as-built plans with the City identifying all mains and 
storage facilities.  

 
SECTION 15. Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the City and the Company, 
or any of its affiliates (collectively the “Parties”, or individually a “Party”), relating to this 
Franchise Ordinance, the Parties agree to use the following procedure prior to either Party 
pursuing other available remedies: 
 

(a) A meeting shall be held promptly between the Parties, attended by individuals 
with decision-making authority (or telephone access to such individuals) regarding the dispute, 
to attempt in good faith to negotiate a resolution of the dispute. 

 
(b) If within thirty (30) days after such meeting, the Parties have not succeeded in 

negotiating a resolution of this dispute, they will jointly appoint a mutually acceptable 
arbitrator qualified by education and training to rule upon the matter in controversy and not 
affiliated with either of the Parties (the “Arbitrator”). In the event the Parties have been 
unable to agree upon such appointment within fifty (50) days from the initial meeting, the 
Parties will seek the assistance of the American Arbitration Association or other mutually 
agreeable dispute resolution organization to appoint the Arbitrator, who shall have a 
reasonable level of experience with similar issues. The fees of the Arbitrator shall be shared 
equally by the Parties. Each Party in such proceedings shall bear the costs and expenses of its 
counsel, witnesses, and employees. All other costs and expenses of the arbitration proceeding 
shall be borne equally by both Parties. 

 
(c) The Arbitrator shall promptly hear and determine the controversy, dispute, or 

question in accordance with the provisions of the Texas General Arbitration Act or other 
mutually agreeable arbitration act. The Arbitrator shall render a final award within ninety (90) 
days following the date upon which the Arbitrator is appointed. The Parties agree that the 
Arbitrator may award all available contractual remedies to the Parties, including injunctive 
relief, if necessary. 

  

65

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 11 
 

11 
 

 
(d) All arbitration proceedings hereunder shall be subject to the Texas General 

Arbitration Act, and any amendments thereto (unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing 
by the Parties), where such act is not in conflict with the provisions hereto; provided that 
notwithstanding any other term, provision or condition hereof, or the Act, as amended. 

 
SECTION 16. Indemnity. In consideration of the granting of this Franchise, Company agrees 
that City shall not be liable or responsible for, and Company does hereby release, agree to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers and employees, from and 
against any and all suits, actions, or claims of injury to any person, or damages to or loss of 
any property brought or made for or on account of any death, injuries to, or damages received 
or sustained by or on behalf of any person or persons, firm, corporation, or other entity, arising 
out of or occasioned by the Company’s construction, operation, maintenance, or management 
of its transmission or distribution system, or arising from any act of negligence of the 
Company, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees, or licenses, including a breach 
of the Company’s obligation under this Franchise Ordinance to provide the City information 
contained in written reports that is free of material misrepresentation, and from and against all 
costs, counsel fees, expenses and liabilities incurred in or about any such claim or proceeding 
brought thereon; except that the indemnity provided for in this paragraph shall not apply to any 
liability resulting from the negligence or intentional acts or omissions of the City, its officers 
and employees. In the event that any action, suit, or proceeding is brought against City upon 
any liability arising out of the construction, operations, or maintenance of the Company’s 
facilities, City shall give notice in writing to Company by Registered or Certified Mail. Upon 
receipt of such notice, the Company, at its own expense, shall defend such action and take all 
such steps as may be necessary or proper to prevent the obtaining of a judgment against the City 
and/or to satisfy said judgment. City agrees to cooperate with Company in connection with such 
defense. In the event a claim allegedly arises from the concurrent fault of both the City and the 
Company, the Company must indemnify the City to the full proportionate extent to which the 
Company is found to be responsible. The City shall promptly notify the Company by registered 
or certified mail of any claim or cause of action which may be asserted against the City relating 
to or covering any matter against which the Company has agreed, as set forth above, to 
indemnify, defend and save harmless the City. The Company reserves the right, but not the 
obligation, to employ such attorneys, expert witnesses, and consultants as it deems necessary 
to defend against the claim or cause of action. The Company shall have the right to investigate, 
defend and compromise all claims referred to herein after conferring with the City’s legal 
department. It is understood that it is not the intention of either the City or the Company to 
create liability, right or claim for the benefit of third parties and this Franchise Ordinance is 
intended and shall be construed for the sole benefit of the City and the Company. 

 
  

66

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 12 
 

12 
 

SECTION 17. Anti-Boycott Verification.  To the extent this Franchise Ordinance constitutes 
a contract for goods or services within the meaning of Section 2270.002 of the Texas 
Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2270 of the 
Texas Government Code, and subject to applicable Federal law, Company represents that 
neither Company nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent 
company or affiliate of Company (i) boycotts Israel or (ii) will boycott Israel through the term 
of this Franchise Ordinance. The terms “boycotts Israel” and “boycott Israel” as used in this 
paragraph have the meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
SECTION 18. Iran, Sudan and Foreign Terrorist Organizations. To the extent this 
Franchise Ordinance constitutes a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 
2252.151 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with 
Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code, and except to the extent otherwise required by 
applicable federal law, Company represents that Company nor any wholly owned subsidiary, 
majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Contractor is a company listed by 
the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the Texas 
Government Code. 
 
SECTION 19. Anti-Boycott Verification – Energy Companies.  The Company hereby 
verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other 
affiliates, if any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies 
during the term of this Franchise Ordinance.  The foregoing verification is made solely to 
comply with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code, and to the extent such Section is not 
inconsistent with a governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the 
issuance, incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, 
borrowing, or investment of funds.  As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy 
company” means, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating 
business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict 
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a company because the company: (A) 
engages in the exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of 
fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge to meet environmental standards 
beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business with a company described by the 
preceding statement in (A). 
 
SECTION 20. Anti-Discrimination Verification – Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade 
Associations.  The Company hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or 
majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, 
guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association 
and will not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm 
entity or firearm trade association during the term of this Franchise Ordinance.  The foregoing 
verification is made solely to comply with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code.  As 

67

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 13 
 

13 
 

used in the foregoing verification, “discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association” means: (i)  refuse to engage in the trade of any goods or services with the entity 
or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; (ii)  
refrain from continuing an existing business relationship with the entity or association based 
solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; or (iii)  terminate an existing 
business relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity 
or firearm trade association; but does not include (a)  the established policies of a merchant, 
retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition, firearms, 
or firearm accessories; or (b)  a company's refusal to engage in the trade of any goods or 
services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business relationship, or decision to 
terminate an existing business relationship to comply with federal, state, or local law, policy, 
or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency; or for any traditional business reason that 
is specific to the customer or potential customer and not based solely on an entity's or 
association's status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 
 
SECTION 21. Savings Clause. The City Council of the City of Manor, Texas hereby declares 
that if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, work or portion of this 
ordinance is declared invalid, or unconstitutional, by a court of competent jurisdiction, that, in 
such event that it would have passed and ordained any and all remaining portions of this ordinance 
without the inclusion of that portion or portions which may be so found to be unconstitutional or 
invalid, and declares that its intent is to make no portion of this ordinance dependent upon the 
validity of any portion thereof, and that all said remaining portions shall continue in full force and 
effect. 
 
SECTION 22. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 23. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was considered was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

 
SECTION 24. Effective Date. This Franchise Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force 
from and after its final passage and approval by the City Council in accordance with the general 
laws of the State of Texas and the acceptance hereof in writing by Company as herein 
provided. 

 
SECTION 25. Acceptance. The Company shall, within sixty (60) days from the approval 
of this Franchise Ordinance signed by the Mayor, file in the office of the City Secretary its 
consent to and written acceptance of provisions and conditions of this Franchise Ordinance. 

68

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 14 
 

14 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this 4th day of January 2023.  
 

FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this  day of  , 20___. 
 
 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
             
       Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
  
       
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  
  

69

Item 3.



ORDINANCE NO.  Page 15 
 

15 
 

The above and foregoing Franchise Ordinance of the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, 
Ordinance No. _________, and the grants, franchise, powers, rights, and privileges thereto 
were accepted by Texas Community Propane, Ltd., on and as of the _____ day of 
____________, 20___.  
 
 
 
      TEXAS COMMUNITY PROPANE, LTD. 
 
      BY: ________________________________ 
 
      NAME: _____________________________ 
 
      TITLE: _____________________________ 
 
 

70

Item 3.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: January 4, 2023 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the appointments of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
Members for Place No. 1; Place No. 3; Place No. 5 and Place No. 7. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• P&Z Commission Roster 
• P&Z Commission Attendance Report  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council appoint the Planning and Zoning Commission Members 
for Place No. 1; Place No. 3; Place No. 5 and Place No. 7. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval 
 

 Disapproval  None 

 

71

Item 4.



P&Z COMMISSION - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

JULIE LEONARD 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE TOTALS 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present Absent 

01.12.2022 REG A 

02.09.2022 REG A 

03.09.2022 REG A 

PLACE N0.1 04.13.2022 REG p 

CHAIRPERSON 05.11.2022 REG p 

06.08.2022 REG A 

07.13.2022 REG p 8 5 

08.10.2022 REG p 

09.14.2022 REG p 

10.12.2022 REG p 

11.09.2022 REG A 

11.30.2022 css p 

12.14.2022 REG p 

CIF ADVISORY - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

JULIE LEONARD 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE TOTALS 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present Absent 

09.14.2022 REG p 

PLACE N0.1 10.12.2022 REG p 

11.09.2022 REG A 3 1 

12.14.2022 REG p 

P&Z ATTENDANCE CIF ATTENDANCE 

■ 1 ■ 2 ■ 1 ■ 2

Total# 

13 

Total# 

4 

72

Item 4.



P&Z COivlMISSION - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

CRESANDRA HARDEMAN 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE TOTALS 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present Absent 

01.12.2022 REG p 

02.09.2022 REG A 

03.09.2022 REG p 

PLACE NO. 3 04.13.2022 REG p 

05.11.2022 REG p 

06.08.2022 REG A 

07.13.2022 REG p 9 4 

08.10.2022 REG p 

09.14.2022 REG p 

10.12.2022 REG A 

11.09.2022 REG p 

11.30.2022 css A 

12.14.2022 REG p 

CIF ADVISORY - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

CRESANDRA HARDEMAN 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present 

09.14.2022 REG A 

PLACE NO. 3 10.12.2022 REG p 

CHAIRPERSON 11.09.2022 REG A 2 

12.14.2022 REG p 

P&Z ATTENDANCE CIF ATTENDANCE 

■ 1 ■ 2 ■ 1 ■ 2

TOTALS 

Absent 

2 

Total# 

13 

Total# 

4 

73

Item 4.



P&Z COMMISSION - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

JENNIFER WISSMAN 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE TOTALS 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present Absent 

01.12.2022 REG 

02.09.2022 REG 

03.09.2022 REG 

PLACE NO. 5 04.13.2022 REG p 

05.11.2022 REG p 

06.08.2022 REG p 

07.13.2022 REG p 7 3 

08.10.2022 REG A 

09.14.2022 REG p 

10.12.2022 REG p 

11.09.2022 REG p 

11.30.2022 css A 

12.14.2022 REG A 

CIF ADVISORY - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

JENNIFER WISSMANN 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present 

09.14.2022 REG p 

PLACE NO. 5 10.12.2022 REG p 

11.09.2022 REG A 2 

12.14.2022 REG A 

P&Z ATTENDANCE CIF ATTENDANCE 

■1 ■2 ■1 ■2 

TOTALS 

Absent 

2 

Total# 

10 

Total# 

4 

Not Requesting Re-Appointment
74

Item 4.



P&Z COMMISSION - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

LAKESHA SMALL 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE TOTALS 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present Absent 

01.12.2022 REG p 

02.09.2022 REG A 

03.09.2022 REG p 

PLACE NO. 7 04.13.2022 REG p 

VICE-CHAIR 05.11.2022 REG p 

06.08.2022 REG A 

07.13.2022 REG A 10 3 

08.10.2022 REG p 

09.14.2022 REG p 

10.12.2022 REG p 

11.09.2022 REG p 

11.30.2022 css p 

12.14.2022 REG p 

CIF ADVISORY - 2022 YEARLY ATTENDANCE REPORT 

LAKESHA SMALL 

MEMBERS MEETINGS MEETING ATTENDANCE TOTALS 

NAME/PLACE NO. DATE TYPE COUNT Present Absent 

09.14.2022 REG p 

PLACE NO. 7 10.12.2022 REG A 

11.09.2022 REG p 3 1 

12.14.2022 REG p 

P&Z ATTENDANCE CIF ATTENDANCE 

■ 1 ■ 2
10, 77% 

■ 1 • 2

Total# 

13 

Total# 

4 

75

Item 4.



Planning and Zoning Commission 
Public Roster 

Name Place    Appointed Reappointed      Term 

Place No. 1 1/04/2017 1/2/2019 1/01/2023 
Chairperson 11/18/2020 

Julie Leonard 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

Place No. 2 10/20/2021 1/1/2024 Anthony Butler 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

Place No. 3 10/20/2021 1/1/2023 Cresandra Hardeman 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

Place No. 4 12/07/2022 1/01/2024 Felix Paiz  
105 E. Eggleston St. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

Place No. 5 4/06/2022 1/01/2023 Jennifer Wissman 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

Place No. 6 12/18/2019 1/5/2022 1/01/2024 
ETJ Resident 

Cecil Meyer 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

Place No. 7 10/2/2019 11/18/2020 1/01/2023 
Vice-Chair 
ETJ Resident 

LaKesha Small 
105 E. Eggleston St.. 
P.O. Box 387 
Manor, TX 78653 
publiccomments@manortx.gov 

City of Manor 
105 E. Eggleston St.  / P.O. Box 387 

Manor, TX 78653 
512.272.5555 

76

Item 4.

mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org
mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org
mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org
mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org
mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org
mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org
mailto:publiccoments@cityofmanor.org

	Top
	Item 1.	Ordinance No. 686 Texas Community Propane Inc Franchise
	a. Summary Form
	b. Ordinance TCP renewal

	Item 2.	Minutes: December 21, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2022 12 21  CC Draft Minutes

	Item 3.	First Reading: Texas Community Propane Inc Franchise Ordinance
	a. Summary Form
	b. Ordinance TCP renewal

	Item 4.	P&Z Commission Members Appointments
	a. Summary Form
	b.  Attendance Reports for Places 1,3,5 and 7
	c. P& Z Commission Roster

	Bottom

